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July 20, 2021 
 
Portsmouth Planning Board 
Attn: Dexter Legg 
1 Junkins Avenue, Suite 3rd Floor 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
 
RE: Response Letter 4 – TAC Comments 
 375 Banfield Road, Portsmouth, NH 
 Tax Map 266, Lot 7 
 JBE Project No. 19190.2 
 
Dear Mr. Legg, 
 
We are in receipt of comments from Jillian Harris dated July 6, 2021. Review comments are listed 
below with our responses in bold.   
 

1. The creation of robust roadway gravel shoulders on Banfield Road is paramount before 
the use associated with the project is activated. As the City does not have funding for this 
additional work and has already paid for the roadway reconstruction under the paved 
surface, the responsibility is solely on the applicant to construct the shoulders per CMA’s 
recommended design prior to the structure being occupied. Letting the building be 
occupied before the necessary upgrade is complete would deteriorate and damage the 
roadway quickly and permanently essentially wasting the publics funds that were just 
used to rehabilitate the road. 
RESPONSE: The applicant is already having Severino do the shoulder work as they 
are doing the other work in the roadway.  We have not received a report from CMA 
as of yet.   
 

2. It does not appear that you updated your drainage analysis for the current submission. 
Please confirm if any revisions in the latest plan set require revisions to the drainage 
analysis and SMECP. The drainage analysis shall be reviewed by a third-party engineer 
prior to the submission to the Planning Board. 
RESPONSE: The drainage hasn’t been modified since the last report we submitted.  
The Alteration of Terrain Bureau has started their review and we have received 
some emails from Gloria Andrews.  Since they are already providing a detailed 
review of the drainage, would there still need to be another review performed by a 
third party? 
 

3. Final will-serve letters from Eversource and Portsmouth Water Division should be 
included with the submission to Planning Board. 
RESPONSE: Final will-serve letters will be submitted once received. 
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4. This project is the site of an old landfill. As a result, there are known contaminants on the
site. Please provide information from NHDES about the status of this project. The
NHDES Onestop website shows correspondence to the department regarding the site but
the response is not provided. According to NHDES regulations what specific activities
and uses are allowed/ not allowed on the site based on the existence of known
contaminants on the site?
RESPONSE: We have not received any updated response from NHDES yet.

5. Third Party review by CMA shall be completed prior to Planning Board.
RESPONSE: As stated previously, the stormwater is being review by Alteration of
Terrain Bureau and see attached letter describing the process for site
redevelopment by Wilcox & Barton.

Thank you very much for your time. 

Very truly yours, 
JONES & BEACH ENGINEERS, INC. 

Joseph Coronati 
Vice President 

cc: Rob Graham, Banfield Realty, LLC (letter and plans via email) 
      Jim Gove, Gove Environmental Services (letter and plans via email) 
      Bill Wilcox (letter and plans via email) 
      Peter Britz, City of Portsmouth (letter and plans via email) 

Joseph Coronati
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Proposed Development Project 
375 Banfield Road (LU-20-259) 

 
Update as of: February 9, 2021 

 
The 375 Banfield Road parcel was first developed as a farm in the early 1900s, then used as an 
auto salvage and junk yard operation from circa 1960 to 2006.  The auto salvage business 
operated a vehicle crusher on the high point along the northern property boundary.  Automotive 
parts are visible on the ground surface and have been found buried across much of the property.  
It has also been reported that the property accepted building and construction waste as fill during 
the 1960s. 
 
Most recent site operations have included automobile repair and storage.  The proposed project 
would remove three existing buildings and improve the property with a new commercial 
warehouse with associated parking and stormwater infrastructure. 
 
Environmental response began at the property in 1994 in response to the discovery of several 
waste oil tanks, resulting in assignment of Site Number 199408047 by the New Hampshire 
Department of Environmental Services (NHDES).  In 2004, in support of a potential sale of the 
property, ASTM Phase I and Phase II Environmental Site Assessments were completed and 
identified lead contamination in soil, scrap metals and subsurface waste, and excess vehicles 
posing a potential liability.  The conditions were notified to NHDES by the potential buyer. 
 
In 2008, additional investigations were completed by the same potential buyer, resulting in the 
discovery and/or confirmation of: 
 

• arsenic, lead, and mercury in sediment samples from the adjacent wetlands; 
• lead and selenium in the surface water of the wetland; 
• buried debris, man-made fill, and asbestos in the subsurface; 
• hydrocarbons, metals (arsenic and lead), and polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) in soil, 

and  
• hydrocarbons, metals (arsenic and lead) in groundwater.   

 
These findings were also notified to NHDES, with a recommendation for additional investigation 
as well as registration of the site as a “Pre-1981 Landfill.”  This registration was completed in 
2009, thereby exempting the site from the state Solid Waste Management regulations. 
 
In 2011, NHDES issued a letter to the property owner requiring two rounds of groundwater 
monitoring, collection of sediment and surface water samples, proper management of buried 
asbestos waste, and characterization of the source and extent of PCB contamination.  As of the 
date of acquisition by Banfield Realty, LLC in February 2020, the prior owner had not responded 
to the NHDES request. 
 
In July 2020, Wilcox & Barton, Inc. completed a Site Investigation on behalf of the current 
project proponent, with a scope of work designed to meet the 2011 NHDES request.  The 
resulting report was submitted to NHDES.   
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The most recent and best available data are summarized in the July 9, 2020, Site Investigation 
Report.  As committed in the report, and to further satisfy the NHDES request, an additional 
round of groundwater sampling was completed in January 2021 and documented in a 
Supplemental Data Transmittal dated January 27, 2021.  The results of these efforts, taken 
together, along with the regulatory history, indicate that: 
 

1. Solid waste may be left in place.  If buried wastes are disturbed during excavation, man-
made materials must be removed and disposed off site.  Soil that is segregated from the 
waste can be re-used on the property. 

2. If suspect asbestos containing materials are discovered during site work, they must be 
characterized and then managed in accordance federal and state regulations.  

3. Arsenic in soil is concluded to be naturally occurring and requires no further action. 
4. Lead is present in soil at sporadic, discontinuous locations with no apparent source or 

distribution.  The recommended action is management in place. 
5. Metals are not present in the dissolved phase at concentrations exceeding applicable 

groundwater quality standards. 
6. The emerging group of contaminants known as per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances 

(PFAS) are present in groundwater at discrete locations across the site and in the wetland 
areas. Conditions do not emanate from an apparent source and there is no obvious plume-
like distribution.  Aside from submittal of these data to the state database, no further 
remedial action or response is required with respect to PFAS at this time. 

 
Wilcox & Barton, Inc. anticipates working with NHDES to develop a Remedial Action Plan, 
including implementation of a Soil & Groundwater Management Plan, to support proper 
management of environmental conditions during construction.  
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